
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Licensing Committee (Licensing Act 2003 
Functions) 

Date: 18 July 2008 

Time: 10.00am 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
C Theobald (Chairman), Lepper (Deputy 
Chairman), Mrs Cobb, Fryer, Hamilton, Harmer-
Strange, Hyde, Kitcat, Marsh, Older, Pidgeon, 
Simson, Watkins, West and Young 

Contact: Christian Brown 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291066 
christian.brown@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout                    

Public Seating 

Press 

Councillor 
Fryer 

Councillor 
Marsh 

Councillor 
Hamilton 

Councillor 
Lepper 

Councillor 
Older 

Councillor 
Hyde 

Councillor 
Pidgeon 

Councillor 
Cobb 

Councillor 
Watkins 

Councillor 
C Theobald 

Lawyer Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Public 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Harmer-
Strange 

 

Head of 
Department 

Councillor 
Simson 

Councillor 
Young 

Councillor 
Kitcat 

Councillor 
West 

Member 
Speaking 



LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

13. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes – substitutes not permitted. 
 
(b) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 

interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

14. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE LICENSING 
ACT 2003 - BIG BEACH BOUTIQUE LIMITED, MADEIRA DRIVE, 
BRIGHTON 

1 - 14 

 Report of Assistant Director, Public Safety (copy attached).  
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Christian Brown, 
(01273 291066, email christian.brown@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

Date of Publication - Thursday, 10 July 2008 

 





 

Licensing Panel  

(Licensing Act 2003 Functions) 

Agenda Item 14 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Application for a Premises Licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 

 

Applicant:  Big Beach Boutique Limited 

Premises: Madeira Drive 

Brighton 

Date of Meeting: 18 July 2008 

Report of: Assistant Director Public Safety 

Contact Officer: Name:  Martin New Tel: 292425 

 E-mail: martin.new@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected:  Queen’s Park 

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

 

 

1. Purpose of the report  

 

1.1 To determine an application for a Premises Licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 

 

2. Summary of application 

 

2.1 The application is for: 

 

A premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003.   

 

The application proposes:  

A Section of Madeira Drive, Brighton. There will be a fenced off area along 
Madeira Drive containing an outdoor performance stage where live bands and 
DJ's will appear. There will be food, market and bar units located around the 
event site. 

1



 

 

2.2  Summary table of existing and proposed activities 

 

 Existing  Proposed 

E Live music N/A Outdoors 
Friday & Saturday 
15:00 – 21:45 

There will be one main 
outdoor stage that will 
have bands & DJ's 
performing with amplified 
music, this stage will close 
at 21:45 each night. 

F Recorded 
Music  

N/A Outdoors 
Friday & Saturday 

15:00 – 21:45 

There will be one main 
outdoor stage that will 
have bands & DJ's 
performing with amplified 
music, this stage will close 
at 21:45 each night. 

G 
Performance 
of Dance 

N/A Outdoors 
Friday & Saturday 

15:00 – 21:45 

Dancers will appear with 
some bands and DJ's 
performing at the event. 

J Provision 
of facilities 
for dancing 

N/A Outdoors 
Friday & Saturday 

15:00 – 21:45 

People will be able to 
dance across the entire 
site, should they wish to 
do so. 

M Supply of 
Alcohol 

N/A  On the Premises 
Friday & Saturday 

15:00 – 22:00 

 

O Hours 
premises are 
open to 
public 

N/A 15:00 – 22:00 

 

 

2



 

 

3. Representations received 

 

3.1 Details of the representations made are notified to applicants on receipt 
by the Licensing Authority using a pro-forma.  A summary appears 
below: 

 

a) Two representations were received from local residents, one from a 
local resident’s society and one each from the Health, Safety & 
Licensing and Pollution Control Teams of the Environmental Health 
& Licensing Department. 

   

b) Representations had concerns relating to Prevention of Public 
Nuisance, Public Safety and Cumulative impact. 

 

4. Commentary on licensing policy  

 

4.1 The following extracts from Brighton & Hove Licensing Policy are 
considered relevant to this application and numbered as they appear in 
the policy: 

General 

 

1.2 The licensing objectives are:- 
(a) prevention of crime and disorder; 
(b) public safety; 
(c) prevention of public nuisance; 
(d) protection of children from harm. 

 
1.3   Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed 
premises, by qualifying clubs and at temporary events. Any 
conditions attached to various authorisations will be focussed on 
matters which are in the control of individual licensees and others 
with relevant authorisations, i.e. the premises and its vicinity. 
 
1.5 Each application will be given individual consideration 
on its merit. Nothing in this policy shall undermine the right 
of any individual to apply under the terms of the Act for a 
variety of permissions and to have any such application 
considered on its individual merits. Similarly, nothing in this 
policy shall override the right of any person to make 
representations on an application or seek a review of a 
licence or certificate where provision has been made for 
them to do so in the Act 
 
1.15 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the 
general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by 

3



 

individuals once they are away from the licensed premises 
and, therefore, beyond the direct control of the individual, 
club or business holding the licence, certificate or 
authorisation concerned. Licensing is about the control of 
licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events 
within the terms of the Act, and the conditions attached to 
licences, certificates and permissions will be focused on 
matters which are within the control of the licensee and will 
centre on the premises themselves and their immediate 
vicinity. When considering these terms and conditions the 
licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of 
the activities taking place at the licensed premises on 
members of the public living, working or engaged in normal 
activity in the area concerned.  

 
2.4 Cumulative impact – the licensing authority may receive 
representations from either a responsible authority or an 
interested party that the premises will give rise to a negative 
cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing 
objectives. This should not, however, be confused with 
‘need’ which relates more to the commercial demand for a 
particular type of premises. The issue of ‘need’ is therefore a 
matter for the market to decide and can, in some 
circumstances, be a matter for planning consideration; need 
therefore does not form part of this licensing policy 
statement.   
 

2.4.1 Special Policy - Cumulative Impact is defined as the 
potential impact upon the promotion of the licensing objectives of 
a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one 
area.  

 
2.4.2 The licensing authority after careful consideration has 
determined that the concentration of licensed premises in a 
small area of the city centre is causing problems of crime 
and disorder and public nuisance, and that therefore an 
approach to Cumulative Impact is necessary as part of its 
statement of licensing policy. This special policy was 
adopted for inclusion within the statement of licensing policy 
by Council on 13 March 2008. 
 
2.4.3 This special policy will refer to a Cumulative Impact 
area (“the Area”) in the Brighton city centre, a detailed plan 
of which is attached at Appendix A of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy (SoLP).  
 
2.4.4 The effect of this special policy is that applications for 
new premises licences or club premises certificates within 
the Area, or variations which are likely to add to the existing 
Cumulative Impact, will normally be refused following 

4



 

relevant representations. This presumption can be rebutted 
by the applicant if they can show that their application will 
have no negative Cumulative Impact. 
 
2.4.5 Any variation application will potentially come within 
this special policy, including those for extensions of hours, 
subject always to an applicant satisfying the authority that 
there will be no adverse effect on Cumulative Impact.  
 
2.4.6 This special policy also applies to all new premises 
licences and club premises certificates, for example pubs, 
off-licences, restaurants and take-away establishments. 
 
2.4.7 The presumption of refusal does not relieve 
responsible authorities or interested parties of the need to 
make a relevant representation. If there are no 
representations the licensing authority must grant the 
application in terms consistent with the operating schedule 
submitted.  
 
2.4.8 Furthermore, this special policy is not absolute. Upon 
receipt of a relevant representation, the licensing authority 
will always consider the circumstances of each case and 
whether it is justified in departing from its special policy in 
the light of the individual circumstances of the case. If an 
application is unlikely to add to the Cumulative Impact of the 
Area, it may be granted. The Impact can be expected to be 
different for premises with different styles and 
characteristics. For example, while a large nightclub or high 
capacity public house might add to problems of Cumulative 
Impact, a small restaurant or theatre may not. 
 
2.4.9 If the licensing authority decides that an application 
should be refused, it will still need to show that the grant of 
the application would undermine the promotion of one of the 
licensing objectives and that conditions would be ineffective 
in preventing the problems involved.  
 
2.4.10 Special Stress Areas - Appendix B of the SoLP 
details two areas of the Brighton city centre which border the 
Cumulative Impact area at Appendix A and which are 
deemed areas of special concern in terms of the levels of 
crime and disorder and public nuisance experienced within 
them.  
 
2.4.11 While it is not considered appropriate at this stage to 
include these areas within the main impact area as such, 
these Special Stress Areas (SSAs) are of concern to the 
licensing authority because of the relatively high levels of 
crime and disorder and nuisance experienced.  

5



 

 
2.4.12  New and varied applications for premises and club 
premises certificates within SSAs will not be subject to the 
presumption of refusal, but operators will be expected to pay 
special attention when drawing up their operating schedules 
and to make positive proposals to ensure that their 
operation will not add to the problems faced in these areas. 
Appendix C of the SoLP sets out a list of potential measures 
the licensing authority considers may be appropriate. These 
may be more or less appropriate depending upon the style 
of operation applied for. 
 
On receipt of any application in SSAs, where a relevant 
representation has been made, the licensing authority will 
scrutinise the application carefully and will look at the 
measures proposed in the operating schedules and 
compare them to the measures set out in Appendix C. 
Where discretion has been engaged, those applications 
which fall short may be refused or conditions applied to 
comply with policy measures. 
 
The Licensing Authority will keep the Cumulative Impact 
Area and Special Stress Areas under review.  Should the 
authority find that problems of crime and disorder or 
nuisance are not improving, or are worsening; the Special 
Policy will be reviewed with a view to bringing the SSAs into 
the Cumulative Impact Area.  If it is found that the above 
problems are receding the Special Policy may be reviewed 
with a view to revising the areas’ boundaries. 

 
In respect of Public Safety 

 
3.1  Club owners and promoters will be expected to have 
regard to “Safer Clubbing: guidance for licensing authorities, 
club managers and promoters”.  The licensing authority will 
seek to ensure that licensed premises are designed and run 
in a way which maximises the safety of customers and staff. 
In order to minimise disputes and the necessity for hearings, 
it would be sensible for applicants to consult with all 
responsible authorities when operating schedules are being 
prepared. 
 
3.2  Conditions will be imposed in accordance with operating 
schedules to protect public safety including where justified:- 
(a) provision of close circuit television and panic buttons. 
(b) use of shatterproof drinking vessels, bottles requiring use 

of toughened glass or plastic (recognised by Community 
Safety Strategy). 

6



 

(c) use of security personnel, such as door supervisors, 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority (recognised by 
the Community Safety Strategy). 

(d) requirement of a minimum of a licensed door supervisor 
for every 100 customers in nightclubs and large city 
centre pubs or as indicated by risk assessment. 

(e) occupant capacity conditions will be applied where 
appropriate. 

(f) the provision of designated and suitably trained first 
aiders  

 
3.3  In determining applications for new licences or 
extensions in hours or terminal hours of licensed premises, 
regard will be had to late night public transport availability 
and location of taxi ranks to aid dispersal of customers as 
recognised by the Community Safety Strategy and Policing 
Strategy.  Applicants may be required to consult local 
transport operators and are encouraged to support the use 
of public transport through the provision of advice, contact 
details etc. 
 
3.4 Policy recognises that the numbers of late night revellers 
can lead to service delivery pinch-points, for example at city 
centre taxi ranks. Frustration and restlessness in queues 
can lead to anti-social behaviour and public disorder which 
can be controlled by , for example, taxi marshalling systems. 
Operators whose customers contribute to the night-time 
demand for taxis may wish to consider assisting in the 
provision of resources for such systems or similar schemes. 
 
3.5  Control of public safety at high profile commercial or 
sporting events or other large scale events may be 
supported by police powers of closure of licensed premises 
 
3.6 Where, appropriate , licence holders, or their authorised 
representatives will attend Safety Advisory Group and 
similar meetings prior to large events and shall be part of 
Event Liaison Teams during such events. Due regard shall 
be had to relevant guidance and publications including for 
example, HSE publications “Event Safety Guide” and 
“Managing Crowds Safely”; LACORS publication “Managing 
Large Events” 
 
3.7  Prior consent will be required for: performance of stage 
hypnotism, fireworks and lasers.  Applications should 
contain details prescribed by the licensing authority.   
Conditions may be applied to any consent 
 

 
 

7



 

In respect of the prevention of public nuisance 
 
4.1 In determining applications for new and varied 
licences, regard will be had to the location of premises, the 
type and construction of the building and the likelihood of 
nuisance and disturbance to the amenity of nearby residents 
by reason of noise from within the premises, or as a result of 
people entering or leaving the premises or from individuals 
or groups of customers gathered outside (e.g. in order to 
smoke) 
 
4.3  Applications for new licences or for the extension in size 
of licensed premises should not normally be granted if the 
premises will use amplified or live music and operate within 
or abutting premises containing residential accommodation 
except that occupied by staff of the licensed premises.  A 
condition may be imposed on new licences that 
entertainment noise shall be inaudible in any residence. 
 
4.4 Installation of sound limiting equipment and sound 
insulation may be required to minimise disturbance to the 
amenity of nearby residents by reason of noise from the 
licensed premises. 
 
4.5  Staggered closing times will not be used to combat 
binge drinking disorder and antisocial behaviour.  Zoning will 
be avoided.  A general principle of later opening so that 
customers can leave for natural reasons, slowly over longer 
periods will be promoted, to prevent unnatural 
concentrations of people. The location of violent attacks, 
anti-social behaviour and hate crime or related incidents 
may be used to justify closing times. 
 
4.6  Generally permitted temporary activities in the open air 
including tents and marquees should have a maximum 
closure hour of 11.00pm.  Earlier hours may be imposed in 
sensitive open spaces or near residential areas. 
 
4.7 In determining applications for new licences or 
extensions in hours or terminal hours of licensed premises, 
regard will be had to late night public transport availability 
and location of taxi ranks to aid dispersal of customers.  
 
4.8 Regard will be had to any history or likelihood of 
nuisance.  Generally, favourable consideration will be given 
to applications for later hours in the city centre and on busy 
main roads.  Powers may be exercised to impose conditions 
as to hours of opening in order to avoid unreasonable 
disturbance to residents of the neighbourhood. 

 

8



 

Strategic Integration 
 
6.5  Specific conditions may be attached to premises 
licences to reflect local crime prevention strategies.  Such 
conditions may include the use of closed circuit television 
cameras, the provision and use of shatterproof drinking 
receptacles, drugs and weapons search policy, the use of 
registered door supervisors, specialised lighting 
requirements, hours of opening. 
 
6.7  This policy avoids duplication with other regulatory 
regimes wherever possible. 
 

In respect of Live music, Dancing and Theatre 
 
7.1  This policy recognises the need to encourage live 
music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefits of 
the community generally.  In addressing such issues the 
potential for limited disturbance in neighbourhoods will 
always be carefully balanced with these wider benefits, 
particularly for children. The impact of licensing on regulated 
entertainment, particularly live music and dancing, will be 
monitored.  Where indications are that such events are 
being deterred by licensing requirements, the policy will be 
revisited with a view to investigating how such situations 
might be reversed. 
 
7.2 The Licensing Committee represents the general 
interests of a community.  In determining what conditions 
should be attached to licences and certificates as a matter 
of necessity for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
The Licensing authority is aware of the need to avoid 
measures which deter live music, dancing and theatre - 
such as imposing indirect costs out of proportion to the 
income of the licence holder and to the risks presented. 
Only necessary, proportionate and reasonable licensing 
conditions should impose any restrictions on such events. 

 

5.  Background Documents 

 

 Environmental Health & Licensing Service, Brighton & Hove City Council 
(2008): The Licensing Act 2003 – Brighton & Hove City Council Statement 
on Licensing Policy.   

  

 

 

9



 

 APPENDIX A 
Brighton & Hove City Council - Cumulative Impact Area 

 

 

The Cumulative Impact Area comprises the area bounded by and including: 
the north side of Western Road, Brighton from its intersection with the west 
side of Spring Street to the junction with the west side of Dyke Road at its 
eastern end; from there, north-east to the junction of the north side of Ayr 
Street with the west side of Queens Road and then northward to the north-
west corner of Queens Road junction with Church Street; thence along the 
north side of Church Street eastwards to its junction with Marlborough Place 
and continuing south-east across to the north-western junction of Edward 
Street; along the north side of Edward Street to the east side of its junction 
with Egremont Place and southward along the eastern sides of Upper Rock 
Gardens and Rock Gardens; southward to the mean water mark and following 
the mean water line westward to a point due south of the west boundary of 
Preston Street; northward to that point and along the west side of Preston 
Street to its northwest boundary and then diagonally across Western Road to 
its intersection with the west side of Spring Street 

10



 

APPENDIX B 

Brighton & Hove City Council – Special Stress Areas 

 

The areas recommended for further monitoring and detailed guidance within 
the Special Policy comprise the following as pictured below:- 

 

 

 

Area 1 - an area bounded by and including: the north side of Western Road, 
Brighton from its intersection with the west side of Spring Street and along the 
north side of Western Road, Hove to its intersection with the west side of 
Holland Road; southward along the west side Holland Road to its end and 
then due south across the Kingsway to the mean water mark; along the mean 
water mark eastwards to the intersection with the boundary of the cumulative 
impact area and along that boundary northwards to the intersection of 
Western Road, Brighton with the west side of Spring Street. 

 

11



 

Area 2 – an area bounded by and including: from a point on the west side of 
the Surrey Street / Terminus Road intersection adjacent to Guildford Road 
eastwards along the north side of Trafalgar Street to its eastern end; due east 
across York Place to the east side of Richmond Place; southward along the 
east side of Richmond Place and Grand Parade to the cumulative impact 
area’s Edward Street boundary: westwards along the cumulative impact 
area’s northern boundary to the north-west corner of the Church Street 
junction with Queens Road; north along the west sides of Queens Road and 
Surrey Street to the point on the west side of the Surrey Street / Terminus 
Road intersection adjacent to Guildford Road. 

 

12



 

APPENDIX C 

 

Measures to be included for consideration in SSAs are: 

 

Matters that would normally be expected in operating schedules -  

§ the adoption of a “Challenge 21” policy with acceptable proof 
of id as per existing Statement of Licensing Policy 

§ all off sales to be made in sealed containers for consumption 
away from the premises 

§ a smoking policy which includes an assessment of noise and 
litter created by premises users 

§ the use of plastic or polycarbonate drinking vessels and 
containers, especially in outside areas or after specified hours 

§ a policy in relation to searching customers and for drugs, 
weapons, seized or lost and found property 

§ use of a refusals book for registering attempts to buy alcohol 
by under-age persons or refusals to those intoxicated 

§ the installation of a digital cctv system by liaison with, and to a 
standard approved by, Sussex police 

§ policies for dispersal of customers which may include signage 
regarding taxi services’ telephone numbers and advice to 
respect neighbours and minimize noise 

§ systems to ensure any SIA door staff or Mobile Support Unit 
personnel display appropriate badges when on duty 

 

Items to which positive consideration would be given -  

§ membership of Brighton Crime Reduction Partnership, 
Pubwatch, Neighbourhood Watch or similar schemes 

§ use of ‘nightsafe’ radio system or similar accredited scheme 
§ regular training and reminders for staff in respect of licensing 

legislation, policies and procedures; records of which should 
be properly recorded and available for inspection 

§ records of regular checks of all parts of the premises in 
relation to drug use 

§ systems in place to ensure details of barred clients are 
exchanged with other operators 

§ giving an agreed minimum notice of special events (screening 
of major sports events, birthday parties, adult entertainment, 
etc.) to relevant authorities  and use of appropriate additional 
measures at such events 

 

Matters that might be recommended for appropriate restrictions - 

§ entry to premises by under 18s after certain times 
§ consumption of food and drink in smoking areas 
§ access to outside seating areas after certain times 

 

13



14


	Agenda
	14 Application for a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 - Big Beach Boutique Limited, Madeira Drive, Brighton

